
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Transport and Environment,  
Councillor Claire Dowling 
 
MONDAY, 28 APRIL 2025 AT 10.00 AM  
 
COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.   Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 17 March 2025  (Pages 3 - 6) 

 
2.   Disclosure of Interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct.  
 

3.   Urgent items   
Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take 
at the appropriate part of the agenda.  
 

4.   Petition for the road layout to be changed and physical width restrictions installed to 
enforce the 7.5t weight restriction in the High Street, Bexhill  (Pages 7 - 18) 
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport  
 

5.   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Deputy Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 16 April 2025 
 
Contact Sophie Webb, Governance and Democracy Manager,  
01273 337495 
Email: sophie.webb@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT 

 

DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Transport and Environment, Councillor Claire 
Dowling, on 17 March 2025 at Committee Room, County Hall, Lewes  

 

 

Councillors Cross, Daniel, Denis, Maples, Redstone, Robinson and Stephen Shing spoke on 
item 5 (see minute 60) 

 

55. DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 24 FEBRUARY 2025  

 

55.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 24 
February 2025. 

 

56. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  

 

56.1 There were none. 

 

57. URGENT ITEMS  

 

57.1 There were none. 

 

58. REPORTS  

 

58.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book. 

 

 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 

 

 

59. CAPITAL PROGRAMME FOR LOCAL TRANSPORT IMPROVEMENTS 2025/26  

 

59.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
59.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 
(1) Agree the draft capital programme of local transport improvements for 2025/26 set out in 
Appendix 1 to the report; and 
 
(2) Agree the allocation of County Council capital funding, development contributions and Local 
Growth Fund monies towards specific improvements identified in the 2025/26 programme. 
 
REASONS 
 
59.3 The draft capital programme for local transport improvements for 2025/26 represents a 
balanced programme of improvements which supports the key objectives of both the previous 
Local Transport Plan (LTP3), and the recently adopted Plan (LTP4) and its principles of 
‘planning for people and places’. 
 
59.4 As the Council transitions to LTP4, there are several legacy schemes which are more 
reflective of LTP3 and its priorities which are in the latter stages of their development and 
delivery cycle. As these legacy schemes are delivered, and with the introduction of a revised 
scheme assessment and prioritisation process alongside potential changes to how local 
authorities receive capital and revenue funding for transport schemes, future local transport 
capital programmes and the schemes within from 2026/27 onwards will closely align with the 
objectives of LTP4. 
 
59.5 The draft programme was considered and endorsed by the cross-party Member Panel 
on 12 February 2025. The grant funding received by the County Council from Government 
towards integrated transport schemes, development contributions and Local Growth Fund 
monies for the Eastbourne and South Wealden Walking and Cycling Package and Hastings and 
Bexhill Movement and Access Package identified to support the capital programme for local 
transport improvements for 2025/26 will be allocated to the respective schemes as set out in 
Appendix 1 of the report. 

 

60. EAST SUSSEX BUS SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN  

 

60.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
60.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 
(1) Approve the Bus Service Improvement Plan 2 at Appendix 1 of the report; 
 

Page 4



 

 

 

 

(2) Approve the Bus Service Improvement Plan 2025/26 Delivery Plan at Appendix 2 of the 
report; 
 
(3) Note that the Director is in discussion with the Department for Transport about reallocating 
some of the Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) funding to the Exceat Bridge project as 
outlined in paragraph 1.6 of the report; and 
 
(4) Delegate authority to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport to implement 
and make changes to the Bus Service Improvement Plan 2025/26 Delivery Plan as necessary. 
 
REASONS 
 
60.3 East Sussex County Council’s mission as a local transport authority is to ensure that 
East Sussex residents and visitors enjoy the highest possible quality bus services that provide a 
frequent and comprehensive choice, reduce congestion, and make a positive contribution to 
better air quality and decarbonisation. This mission is supported by the authority’s bus operators 
who will play a key role in its delivery. 
 
60.4 The original East Sussex BSIP submitted in October 2021 is a highly ambitious plan that 
sought to stimulate and drive significant improvements to bus services across the local authority 
area and the wider region. The BSIP2 details what has been delivered to date, what will be 
delivered within the current BSIP1 funding period and ambitions beyond. The BSIP2 continues 
to illustrate East Sussex County Council’s ambition to deliver the highest possible quality bus 
services that meet the needs of East Sussex residents and visitors. 

 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to: Lead Member for Transport and Environment 
 

Date of meeting: 
 

28 April 2025 

By: Director of Communities, Economy and Transport  
 

Title: Petition for the road layout to be changed and physical width 
restrictions installed to enforce the 7.5t weight restriction in the High 
Street, Bexhill.  
 

Purpose: To consider the petition requesting that the County Council change 
the road layout in High Street, Bexhill by way of physical width 
restrictions to prevent vehicles over the 7.5t weight restriction from 
using the High Street and to consider smaller buses being used or 
buses being re-routed. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: The Lead Member is recommended to advise the petitioners that:  

 

(1) A potential scheme to construct a physical width restriction on the High Street will 
be fully assessed for possible inclusion for funding within the Capital Programme;  

(2) Whilst all options will be fully considered, due to the requirement to ensure the 

emergency services and legitimate HGV deliveries can still take place within the 

High Street, a physical width restriction is likely to have minimal effect on ‘through’ 

HGV traffic using the High Street; 

(3) The concerns about enforcement of the 7.5t weight restriction on the High Street 
have been passed to Sussex Police as the correct enforcement authority; and 
 

(4) The re-routing of the scheduled bus service would have a substantial impact on 
passengers gaining access to Bexhill Hospital and it is not possible to operate these 
routes with buses less than 7.5t as they would not have the seating capacity to cater 
for passenger demand on these routes. No changes are therefore recommended to 
the bus service along the High Street at this time. 

 

 

1 Background Information 

1.1.  At the County Council meeting on 11 February 2025, a petition was presented to the 
Chairman by Councillor Clark and Councillor Hollidge on behalf of concerned residents to enforce 
the 7.5t weight restriction on the High Street in Bexhill to preserve the historic listed buildings. The 
petitioners are requesting that the County Council change the road layout in the High Street by way 
of physical width restrictions to prevent vehicles over the 7.5t weight restriction from using the High 
Street and to consider smaller buses being used or buses being re-routed.    

1.2.  Standing Orders provide that where the Chairman considers it appropriate, petitions are 
considered by the relevant Committee or Lead Member and a spokesperson for the petitioners is 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



invited to address the Committee. The Chairman has referred this petition to the Lead Member for 
Transport and Environment. A copy of the petition is available in the Members’ Room. 

1.3.  The B2182 High Street is within the preservation area of the Old Town of Bexhill and lies 
between Chantry Lane/Belle Hill at its western end and Upper Sea Road/ Church Street at is 
eastern end. A location plan can be found at Appendix 1. 
 

1.4.  The High Street is subject to a 7.5t weight restriction between its junctions with Chantry 

Lane/Belle Hill and Upper Sea Road/Church Street. It has an ‘except for access’ provision which 
means that any Heavy Goods Vehicle (HGV) which is legitimately accessing land or property within 
the restriction is legally permitted to do so.  Enforcement of moving traffic restrictions such as weight 
limits is a matter for Sussex Police. East Sussex County Council has no power to enforce these 
restrictions. 

1.5.  Advanced advisory signing of the weight restriction on the High Street has been provided 
at the junction of the A269 London Road/B2182 Holliers Hill and on the B2182 Upper Sea Road, 
which provides drivers with the opportunity to use the A269 London Road or De La Warr Road as 
an alternative route. There are regulatory 7.5t weight restriction signs at the start of the prohibition 
at either end of the High Street. Appendix 2 shows photographs of the traffic signs in place. As with 

any restriction it relies on drivers taking note of the road signs which have been provided.    

1.7  Bus services use the High Street in Bexhill with the primary reason to provide access for 
patients and visitors attending Bexhill Hospital on Hollier’s Hill. These bus services (routes 53, 
94/94A and 95) run from Bexhill, Sidley, Hastings and other areas.  All of these buses are over 
7.5t.  

1.8.   Bexhill Community Bus also provide bus route 12 along Bexhill High Street linking Bexhill 
Hospital with Bexhill Town Centre and Pebsham. This service runs with a minibus under 7.5t, 
however it only provides 4 return journeys a day.  

1.9. Crash data supplied by Sussex Police for the most recent 3-year period up to 31 January 
2025 shows that there have been no recorded personal injury crashes on the High Street. 

 

2 Supporting Information 

2.1.  The County Council has a limited amount of funding to develop local transport 
improvements and needs to ensure that resources are allocated to those schemes which will be of 
the greatest benefit to local communities. The fourth East Sussex Local Transport Plan (LTP4) was 
adopted on 8 October 2024, resulting in the need to update the Council’s scheme assessment 
process to reflect the priorities set out in LTP4. As a result, the Council is unable to undertake an 
assessment of the request for a physical width restriction on the High Street whilst a new approach 
is being developed and approved.  

2.2.    It is expected that the new assessment approach will be available by October 2025, at 
which time the assessment of the request to construct a physical width restriction on the High Street 
will be undertaken. The lead petitioner will be contacted directly should the request successfully 
progress beyond the first assessment stage. Whilst there is a wait in undertaking the assessment, 
it will not delay the timescales for the inclusion of potential schemes that are successful in being 
included in the capital programme of local transport improvements.  

2.3 It is important to note that any physical width restriction must maintain adequate road widths to 
ensure the emergency services can gain access to the High Street at all times, and that any HGV 
legitimately delivering to land or property within the High Street, including household deliveries and 
refuse collection vehicles, can also still gain access.   Whilst options will be fully explored, it is likely 

Page 8



that any physical width restriction would have minimal effect on ‘through’ HGV traffic using the High 
Street. 

2.4.   The nearest alternative suitable route for buses to follow if they were re-routed from the 
High Street is along London Road. This would require patients and visitors attending Bexhill 
Hospital to walk a further 270 metres (measured from the nearest bus stops in London Road). The 
alternative bus route would have to be via Havelock Road and Springfield Road and would also 
lead to a longer walk at the hospital end of the journey which would be up hill. Re-routing buses 
would also reduce access to bus services for residents living in the High Street and Hollier’s Hill 
area.  These impacts are likely to be substantial on these residents.  

2.5  It is not possible to operate these scheduled bus routes with buses less than 7.5t as they 
would not have the seating capacity to cater for the passenger demand on these routes. 

 

3 Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations  

3.1.  It is therefore recommended that the Lead Member advises the petitioners that a scheme 
to construct a physical width restriction on the High Street be fully assessed for possible inclusion 
for funding within the Capital Programme. 

3.2.  Petitioners should also be informed that, whilst all options will be fully considered, due to 

the requirement to ensure the emergency services and legitimate HGV deliveries can still take 

place within the High Street, a physical width restriction is likely to have minimal effect on ‘through’ 

HGV traffic using the High Street. 

3.3.  Petitioners should also be informed that the concerns about enforcement of the 7.5t weight 
restriction in the High Street have been passed to Sussex Police as the enforcement authority. 

3.4  Petitioners should also be informed that the re-routing of the scheduled bus service would 
have substantial impact on passengers gaining access to Bexhill Hospital and it is not possible to 
operate these routes with buses less than 7.5t as they would not have the seating capacity to cater 
for the passenger demand on these routes. Therefore, no changes are recommended to the bus 
service along the High Street at this time. 

 

RUPERT CLUBB 
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 

Contact Officer: Helen Clee 
Email: Helen.Clee@eastsussex.gov.uk  

 

LOCAL MEMBERS 

Councillor Clark 

Councillor Hollidge 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

None 

Page 9

mailto:Helen.Clee@eastsussex.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Scale:

´

1:2,500
Date: 10/03/2025Author: 

Plan of High Street in Bexhill

Aerial Photography © Getmapping.com 2025. © East Sussex County Council 2025.
© Crown copyright and database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000808855.
You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with,
the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy,
sub-licence, distribute or  sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

Cities Revealed aer ial photography © The GeoInformation Group 2012
© database right Landmark Information Group Ltd. All r ights reserved 2025

P
age 11

A
ppendix 1

helencle
Text Box
Appendix 1




T
his page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                        APPENDIX 2 

 

View of High Street from junction with Upper Sea Road looking westwards. 

 

 

 

 

Page 13

Appendix 2



View of High Street from junction with Belle Hill looking eastwards. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14



View of High Street from junction with Chantry Lane/Belle Hill looking southwards. 

 

 

Page 15



Sign showing advanced warning of 7.5t weight restriction in Upper Sea Road 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16



Sign showing advanced warning of 7.5t weight restriction at junction of A269 
London Road with B2182 Holliers Hill. 

 

 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 17 March 2025
	4 Petition for the road layout to be changed and physical width restrictions installed to enforce the 7.5t weight restriction in the High Street, Bexhill
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2




